#### LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

Monday, January 22, 2024 James P. Coughlin Center 625 E. County Road Y, Oshkosh

<u>Members Present: 14</u> – Chuck Farrey, Steven Binder, Jim Wise, John Hinz, Brian Defferding, Morris Cox, David Albrecht, Tom Egan, Larry Lautenschlager, Robert Keller, Douglas Nelson, Thomas Snider, Nate Gustafson, and Ralph Harrison.

Absent: 3 - Koby Schellenger, Maribeth Gabert and Karen Powers.

<u>Also Present:</u> Mary Anne Mueller (Corporation Counsel); Conley Hanson (County Board Supervisor); Eric Sparr (District Attorney); State Representatives Nate Gustafson, Michael Schraa and Lori Palmeri; Jennifer Garner representing U.S. Senator Tammy Baldwin's Office and Alan Ott representing Congressman Glenn Grothman's Office.

<u>Via Zoom:</u> Winnebago County Supervisors Rachael Dowling and Shanah Zastera, Ethan Hollenberger (County Executive Assistant), Doug Gieryn (Public Health Director), and Will Terry representing State Senator Rachael Cabral-Guevara's Office.

#### 1. Call to Order

Chairman Farrey called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

### 2. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Farrey opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.

### 3. Approval of minutes of May 22, 2023, and October 23, 2023, meetings

Motion by Supervisor Cox and seconded by Supervisor Albrecht to approve the minutes of the May 22, 2023, meeting. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE. (Abstain: Nelson)

Motion by Larry Lautenschlager and seconded by Supervisor Cox to approve the minutes of the October 23, 2023, meeting. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE. (Abstain: Nelson)

### 4. Public Comments

Conley Hanson, County Board Supervisor, spoke in support for agenda item no. 6, Price County Resolution No. 19-23 – "Request the State of Wisconsin to Address Concerns of Act 216, Relating to Distributing the Proceeds from the Sale of Tax Delinquent Property to the Former Owner"; item no. 7, Polk County Resolution No. 27-23 – "Resolution Supporting a Restitution Court Program for Polk County"; and item no. 8, Kenosha County Resolution No. 60 – "A Resolution on the Individual Health Decisions Pertaining to COVID 19 Government Lockdowns, Vaccine, and Mask Mandates".

#### 5. Correspondence

No correspondence.

Chairman Farrey announced the following individuals were in attendance today: Supervisor Doug Nelson is the interim Chairman for the Solid Waste Management Board; Supervisor Brian Defferding is the vice-chair for the Judiciary & Public Safety Committee filling in for Chairman Bryan Stafford; and Supervisor Jim Wise is the vice-chair for the Facilities & Property Management Committee filling in for Chairman Andy Buck.

## 6. <u>Discussion/Action: Price County Resolution No. 19-23 – "Request the State of Wisconsin to Address Concerns of Act 216, Relating to Distributing the Proceeds from the Sale of Tax Delinquent Property to the Former Owner".</u>

Motion by Supervisor Binder, seconded by Larry Lautenschlager, to bring discussion to the floor.

Motion by Thomas Snider, seconded by Supervisor Hinz, to approve the resolution and forward to the County Board. FAILED BY VOICE VOTE.

### 7. <u>Discussion/Action: Polk County Resolution No. 27-23 – "Resolution Supporting a Restitution Court Program for Polk County".</u>

Motion by Larry Lautenschlager, seconded by Supervisor Binder, to approve the resolution and forward to the County Board. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE. (Nay: Cox)

### 8. <u>Discussion/Action: Kenosha County Resolution No. 60 – "A Resolution on the Individual Health Decisions Pertaining to COVID 19 Government Lockdowns, Vaccine, and Mask Mandates".</u>

Motion by Supervisor Gustafson, seconded by Supervisor Defferding, to approve the resolution and forward to the County Board.

Vote on Resolution: AYES: 7; NAYES: 6 – Farrey, Wise, Cox, Lautenschlager, Nelson, and Snider; ABSTAIN: 0; ABSENT: 3 – Schellenger, Gabert, and Powers. MOTION PASSED.

# 9. <u>Discussion/Action:</u> <u>Green Lake County Resolution 23-2023 – "Resolution in opposition to Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau 2023 Bill Proposal LRB-3518/1" and Sawyer County Resolution 2023-27 – "Resolution on Enhanced Wake Regulations".</u>

Motion by Supervisor Cox to separate and vote on each resolution separately.

### 1. Green Lake County Resolution 23-2023 – "Resolution in opposition to Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau 2023 Bill Proposal LRB-3518/1"

Motion by Supervisor Nelson, seconded by Larry Lautenschlager, to approve the resolution and forward to the County Board.

After further discussion, Motion by Supervisor Nelson, to withdraw his motion and take no action seconded by Larry Lautenschlager. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE.

### 2. Sawyer County Resolution 2023-27 - "Resolution on Enhanced Wake Regulations".

Motion by Larry Lautenschlager, seconded by Supervisor Nelson, to approve the resolution and forward to the County Board.

Vote on Resolution: AYES: 3 – Farrey, Lautenschlager and Nelson; NAYES: 10; ABSTAIN: 0; ABSENT: 3 – Schellenger, Gabert, and Powers. MOTION FAILED.

Motion by Thomas Snider, seconded by Larry Lautenschlager to refer this to the Land Conservation Committee. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE.

### 10. Discuss proposed State and Federal Legislation from the Legislative Committee members

None

### 11. Update from County Executive Jon Doemel

County Executive Jon Doemel updated on the following:

- The Strategic Planning Sessions are taking place January 23<sup>rd</sup> and 24<sup>th</sup>, this week, for the County Board Supervisors and Department Heads. This is an opportunity for these individuals to work with the facilitator and provide input on a strategic plan.
- The agenda prep software, Civic Plus, trials have been going very well, not too many glitches or bugs so far
  to work out. He is very excited as this software has some great features which will create, publish and
  distribute materials to the members and the public faster.

#### 12. Update from State Legislators

Representative Michael Schraa – District 53:

- The Session is winding down. Mr. Schraa stated any bills that haven't had a hearing probably won't get done unless there's a big push to get them on the floor for a vote.
- Representative Schraa mentioned in the budget, they increased the correctional officers hourly pay for an additional \$13/hour and that has made a great impact. They are attracting individuals into corrections as a career. The only complaints they have received is that they are not getting enough overtime. This issue is going in the right direction.
- Mr. Schraa informed everyone an issue that was brought to their attention with the Wisconsin Resource Center and individuals not getting the proper medications. The current process of cases being transferred to a judge in a different county, requesting an order for medication is not working well.
   Several cases get dismissed resulting in the individuals not getting the proper medications. They are working with the Wisconsin Counties Association for a solution.
- Representative Schraa discussed the re-districting that is taking place and the new maps that are being drawn up. This will be debated again on 3/15/2024. This will need to be done by April 15, 2024, as that is when they will begin circulating papers to get on the fall ballot. There will be a lot happening in the next month or two.

Representative Lori Palmeri – District 54:

• Representative Palmeri echoed Representative Schraa's comments and added some additional thoughts regarding the change in district maps.

Representative Nate Gustafson – District 55:

- Representative Gustafson commented on his thoughts regarding the re-districting and new maps that have been drawn up.
- Mr. Gustafson updated everyone on the Task Force on Artificial Intelligence (AI). A report is coming out
  this week with recommendations submitted from the task force that includes forming a committee in the
  next session.
- Representative Gustafson discussed the Medical Marijuana issue. There is a plan in Wisconsin to
  introduce some type of medical marijuana, but it is at an early stage and discussions are still taking place.

Supervisor Nelson asked the representatives about the current issue regarding Wisconsin and the possibility of lake sturgeon being added to the endangered species act. This would be a huge economical impact for Wisconsin.

Representative Schraa stated that there will be a press conference today at 1:00 pm. There is also a community information meeting on the future of sturgeon spearing taking place tonight, January 22,2024, 7:00-8:00 pm, held at the Stockbridge High School Gym. Mr. Schraa expects a very large crowd as there is a lot of concern out there. Federal and State representatives will give an update on efforts underway and what the next steps are in the process. The public will have a chance to voice their concerns and support and ask any questions they may have.

Chairman Farrey thanked the State Representatives for their attendance. It is greatly appreciated.

### 13. <u>Update from Federal Representatives</u>

Alan Ott, District Director—Congressman Glenn Grothman

- Congressman Grothman and Gallagher will be at the press conference and community meeting as mentioned earlier in the meeting regarding the Sturgeon Spearing issue.
- Mr. Ott discussed the border crisis. It has never been as bad as it is now. The illegal immigration is at an all- time record high. December alone, there were over \$300,000 individuals that crossed the border and 61 of them were from all different countries and not just Mexico and South America.
- The budget situation that passed this past Friday split the budget funding into two different pieces. The
  next deadline is in February. If they can't come to an agreement, there will be a partial government shutdown.
- Mr. Ott stated that in December, Congressman Grothman introduced the Bureau of Prisons (BOP) Direct-Hire Authority Act to provide direct hire authority to the Director of the Bureau of Prisons.
- Congress has not been too involved with the redistricting maps.

Jennifer Garner, District Director—Senator Tammy Baldwin

- Senator Baldwin fully supports the Commitment to Veteran Support and Outreach (CVSO) Act. The CVSO Act will expand community-based outreach that will help veterans access services to improve their health and wellness and prevent suicides. Ms. Garner acknowledged that Tom Snider and Joe Aulik were responsible for getting this piece of legislation introduced and it passed unanimously in the Senate. Now, it will go before the House. This is going to help our veterans everywhere in this nation.
- Senator Baldwin was able to include the Fend Off Fentanyl Act which is bi-partisan legislation to combat our crisis. They know they need to take some pretty aggressive measures to stop the flow of fentanyl into our communities.
- Ms. Baldwin also introduced the following pieces of legislation:
  - Stop Fentanyl at the Border Act.
  - Bi-Partisan Safe Response Act
  - Bi-Partisan Re-Entry Act

Winnebago County Sheriff, John Matz, supports both Bi-Partisan Safe Response Act and the Bi-Partisan Re-Entry Act.

• Ms. Garner explained that Senator Baldwin has been involved in many remaining projects but didn't want to take more time to speak on all of them. If anyone is interested or has any questions on any one of them, feel free to contact Ms. Garner or Senator Baldwin's office or visit the website.

### 14. Topics to be discussed at next Legislative Committee Meeting

- Resolutions from other counties referred from County Board
- Supervisor Nelson will work with Mary Anne Mueller, Corporation Counsel, to draft up a resolution addressing the Sturgeon issue and bring it back to the Legislative Committee.

### 15. Next Meeting Date and Time

The next meeting will take place on Monday, March 25, 2024, at 8:30 am.

### 16. <u>Adjourn</u>

Motion made and seconded to adjourn. CARRIED BY VOICE VOTE. The meeting was adjourned at 10:06 a.m.

Submitted by: Cassie J. Smith-Gregor Winnebago County Deputy Clerk